
FISCAL SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT 
 
 

This Agreement is made between the Portsmouth Athenaeum (Fiscal Sponsor) and 
The Center for Archival Research of Portsmouth (Sponsored Organization). 

 
Purpose of Agreement 

 
The Sponsored Organization has proposed that the Fiscal Sponsor sponsor a project (the "Project") to collect and 
receive funds to facilitate the incorporation and initial development of the Center for Archival Research of Portsmouth with 
the assistance of Hurwitt & Associates. The Center for Archival Research of Portsmouth is a nascent nonprofit entity 
dedicated to preservation of historical documents and artifacts and to the fostering of historical research of the history of 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire: 

 
The Fiscal Sponsor has determined that sponsorship of the Project would be consistent with its goals and wishes 
to make arrangements with the Sponsored Organization for the implementation and operation of the Project. 

 
1. The Fiscal Sponsor hereby agrees to sponsor the Project and to assume administrative, programmatic, 

financial, and legal responsibility for purposes of the requirements of funding organizations. The 
Sponsored Organization agrees to implement and operate the Project, in accordance with the terms of this 
agreement and with any requirements imposed by funding organizations. 

 
2. The Project shall be operated in a manner consistent with the Fiscal Sponsor's tax-exempt status and as 

described in this agreement. No material changes in the purposes or activities of the Project shall be made 
without prior written permission of the Fiscal Sponsor and in accordance with any requirements imposed 
by funding organizations, nor shall the Sponsored Organization carry on activities or use funds in any way 
that jeopardizes the Fiscal Sponsor's tax-exempt status. 

 
3. The Sponsored Organization shall not, and shall not permit the Project to, attempt to influence legislation 

or participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of (or in opposition to) any candidate for 
public office or otherwise engage in the carrying on of propaganda (within the meaning of section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986). 

 
4. The Sponsored Organization will provide all information and prepare all reports, including interim and 

final reports, required by funding organizations, with the Fiscal Sponsor's final approval. 
 

5. On behalf of the Sponsored Organization, the Fiscal Sponsor will establish and operate for the use of the 
Project a designated account ("Account") segregated on the Fiscal Sponsor's books. All amounts 
deposited into a Project's Account will be used in its support, less administrative charges, if any, and 
subject to the conditions set forth below. 

 
6. The Sponsored Organization designates  (name) to act as authorizing official. 

The authorizing official shall act as principal coordinator of the Project's daily business with the Fiscal 
Sponsor, and shall have authority to sign disbursement requests. The sponsoring organization authorizing 
officials should have decision-making authority for the project and must be approved in advance by the 
fiscal sponsor. 

 
7. The Fiscal Sponsor and Sponsored Organization will maintain all financial records relating to the Project 

according to generally accepted accounting principles, retain records as long as required by law, and make 
records available to auditors as required by law. 

 
8. The Fiscal Sponsor and the Sponsored Organization will reflect the activities of the Project, to the extent 

required, on their state and federal government tax returns and financial reports. All deposits shall be 



treated as gifts/non-gifts as appropriate and disbursements/payments made, to or on behalf of the 
Sponsored Organization must be to accomplish the purposes of the Project. The Sponsored Organization 
will provide the Fiscal Sponsor with proper documentation to accomplish this, including furnishing the 
Fiscal Sponsor with the Sponsored Organization's Federal Employer Identification Number. 

 
9. In consideration of the Fiscal Sponsor's agreement to sponsor the Project, and to cover the Fiscal 

Sponsor's expenses in connection with the Project as outlined above, the Project will pay the fees, 
charges, and expenses as outlined here.  (x % or flat fee) 

 
10. This agreement will be subject to review six months from the date of the signed agreement, and will 

terminate if any of the following events occur: 
 

a. The Fiscal Sponsor requests the Sponsored Organization to cease activities that it deems might 
jeopardize its tax-exempt status and the Project fails to comply within a period of ten (10) days; 

 
b. The Sponsored Organization fails to perform or observe any other covenant of this agreement, 

and this failure remains unremedied fifteen (15) days after notice in writing; 
 

c. Upon expiration of four weeks after either the Sponsored Organization or the Fiscal Sponsor has 
given written notice of its intent to terminate the agreement. 

 
11. In the event this Agreement is terminated, the Fiscal Sponsor and Sponsored Organization will comply 

with any termination conditions imposed by funding organizations. 
 

Accepted for the Fiscal Sponsor: 
 
 

Signature: 
 
 

Name: 
 
 

Date: 
 
 

 
For the Sponsored Organization: 

 
 

Signature: 
 
 

Name: 
 
 

Date: 



 

 

City of Portsmouth Blue Ribbon Task Force 
Establishment of a Public Private Historical Archive 

 
Meeting: DATE: 08/26/2024 - 9:00 -10:30 

City Hall - Conference Room A 
 

 
Agenda 
 

● Approval of 07/22/2024 Minutes 

● Update on Memorandum of Understanding & Fiscal Sponsorship Letter 

● Fundraising Update 

● Organization’s Conservations Assessments (or statements of need) 

● City’s Conservation Assessments 

● Timeline Review 

● New Business 

 

 

You are invited to a Zoom meeting. 
When: Aug 26, 2024 09:00 AM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
  
Register in advance for this meeting: 
 
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwrcOioqzIrGdH11kChz_y9w6Em_WxLzNLS 
  
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the meeting. 
 
 

  
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZwrcOioqzIrGdH11kChz_y9w6Em_WxLzNLS


July 22, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Archiving Committee on Creating a Public/Private Historical Archive  

Portsmouth NH City Hall Conference Room A, 9 - 10:30am

Attending: Richard Candee, Alan Cohen, Charles Doleac, Elizabeth Farish, Christine 
Friese, Tom Hardiman, Jeff Keefe, Vincent Lombardi, Kristen Peterson and Emma 
Stratton

Absent: —

Guests: Linnea Grim, President and CEO, Thomas W. Haas Endowed Chair, Strawbery 
Banke Museum and Trevor McCourt, Deputy City Attorney, City of Portsmouth 
 
Meeting Opened by Vincent Lombardi: 9:03 am

MOTIONED and SECONDED to accept June 24, 2024, Meeting Minutes. All 
approved.

Discussion of:

Update from Deputy Trevor McCourt:

• Accounting firm Hurwitt & Associates, status for non-profit formation, 
with a $3,500 retainer, Letter of Understanding, with a separate Fiscal 
Sponsor Agreement for the Athenaeum’s role.

• Discussed ways to expedite the IRS’s process to review the application.

• Need to determine entity structure, i.e., board composition. Possibly 2 
member appointments from each institution (staff or volunteer) as well as 
members of the public/at large (3 to break ties).  

MOTIONED and SECONDED to approve board composition. 
One opposed.



City Conservation Assessment update from Christine Friese:

• Three quotes needed. Gathering final information to begin quoting process, 
with possible private foundation funds to cover the cost. Timeline, the end 
of this year.

Entity Name: 

• Center for Archival Research of Portsmouth (CARP). We will create a tag 
line later with “Historical” included. 

MOTIONED and SECONDED to approve board composition. 
All approved.

Public Historian Project: 

• New initiative between the Athenaeum and Strawbery Banke Museum to 
become part of this new initiative: a website with a database, comprised of 
content from public historians.

Meeting Adjourned by Vincent Lombardi: 9:58am



Historical Archives Letter of Understanding 

The following agreement is between the City of Portsmouth, a New Hampshire municipality 
with a principal place of business at 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (“the City”), the 
Strawbery Banke Museum, a non-profit entity organized under the laws of the state of New 
Hampshire with a mailing address of 17 Hancock Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (“Strawbery 
Banke”), the Portsmouth Historical Society, a non-profit entity organized under the laws of the 
state of New Hampshire with a mailing address of 10 Middle Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 
(“the Historical Society”), and the Portsmouth Athenaeum, a non-profit entity organized under 
the laws of the state of New Hampshire with a mailing address of P.O. Box 366, Portsmouth, NH 
03801 (“the Athenaeum”). The City, Strawbery Banke, the Historical Society, and the 
Athenaeum may collectively be referred to as “the Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Parties share a common interest in the preservation of archives relating to the 
history of Portsmouth for the purpose of educational and cultural benefit to both residents of the 
City and the many tourists and visitors from around the world; 

WHEREAS, each of the Parties share a common purpose of preservation and public access; 

WHEREAS, the continued storage of archives within each organization is greatly strained by 
lack of physical space with inability to expand as a result of financial and practical concerns; 

WHEREAS, the Parties are limited in their ability to take on new archives for their collections 
and limited in their ability to allow public access to their archives; 

WHEREAS, the lack of space and adequate facilities is great cause for concern for the 
possibility of future damage to many vulnerable archives; 

WHEREAS, the Parties have come together in the Blue Ribbon Committee for Historical 
Archives with the purpose of collaborating on a public/private historical archive project that 
would provide a secure location for the combined use of the Parties; 

WHEREAS, a primary purpose of this collaboration is storing the Parties and potentially other 
organizations and individuals archives in one location for ease of public access and enjoyment; 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to pursue the formation of a 501(c)(3) non-profit 
organization as the entity under which the historical archive will exist (“the Entity”); 

WHEREAS, representatives of the Parties consulted with Hurwit & Associates, a law firm 
specializing in the nonprofit sector for legal assistance; 

WHEREAS, the estimated creation of the non-profit entity would cost between $6,000 and 
$8,000 in legal fees and require filing with the Internal Revenue Service; 



WHEREAS, beginning the process of non-profit formation would require a $3,500 retainer to be 
paid to Hurwit & Associates and starting to draft and gather the necessary materials for 
formation (seen in Exhibit A). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Each of the Parties shall seek funding for the creation and future success of the Entity. 
 

2. Pursuant to the vote of the Archive Blue Ribbon Committee (the “Committee”) of July 
22, 2024, the Entity shall initially be named the Center for Archival Research of 
Portsmouth (“CARP”).  
 

3. Pursuant to the vote of the Committee of July 22, 2024, CARP’s Board of Directors shall 
have an initial composition of two (2) members appointed by each party, and an 
additional three (3) Board members who will be at-large members. The at-large members 
shall be designated through a process to be defined in CARP’s by-laws.  
 

4. Each Party shall appoint its Board members by vote of each Party’s respective governing 
body no later than December 31, 2024. An earlier deadline may be established by vote of 
the Committee.  
 

5. Representatives of the Parties shall contribute to the drafting of documents necessary for 
the formation of the Entity as laid out in Exhibit A, including but not limited to: 

• Drafting of bylaws 
• Drafting a legal purpose statement 
• Developing a governance structure for the Entity including board seat allocation 
• Defining activities for the Entity 
• Drafting a three-to-five-page narrative of purpose 

 
6. Each of the Parties must decide in accordance with the drafted bylaws what individual(s) 

will represent their organization on the initial board of the Entity. 
 

7. Each of the Parties must conduct conservation assessments. 
 

8. The Parties will each actively contribute to any other necessary aspects of the non-profit 
formation process. 
 

9. Additionally, as fiscal sponsor, the Athenaeum will be responsible for the financial 
management of funds secured by the Parties for the Entity and their administration. 
 



10. The Parties agree that the Athenaeum will enter into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement 
which will outline the obligations and benefits associated with its role as fiscal sponsor.  
 

11. This document is intended to supplement, and not to replace, the ongoing efforts of the 
Historical Archive Committee, the Portsmouth City Council, or any other existing 
agreement between any of the Parties. 
 

12. This agreement shall commence on the date of mutual execution and continue until the 
successful incorporation of the Entity or termination of the agreement by any of the 
Parties. 
 

 

 

 

 

For the City of Portsmouth 

 

_______________________________ 

Karen Sawyer Conard, City Manager 

Dated: _________________________ 

Pursuant to vote of the City Council 

On: ____________________________ 

 

For the Strawbery Banke Museum 

Signature:  __________________________ 

Dated:   __________________________ 

Printed Name:  __________________________ 

Position:  __________________________ 

 

For the Portsmouth Historical Society 



Signature:  __________________________ 

Dated:   __________________________ 

Printed Name:  __________________________ 

Position:  __________________________ 

 

For the Portsmouth Athenaeum 

Signature:  __________________________ 

Dated:   __________________________ 

Printed Name:  __________________________ 

Position:  __________________________ 


	Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement - Athenaeum STS.pdf
	Purpose of Agreement
	Accepted for the Fiscal Sponsor:
	For the Sponsored Organization:

	08-26-24 Meeting Packet.pdf
	Agenda - 08-26-2024.pdf
	Revised Historical Archives Letter of Understanding.pdf
	Updated Meeting Minutes PDF 7-22-24.pdf


